
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 3 Gorffennaf 2019 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon yn cael ei gynnal yn 
Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar Dydd Mercher, 10fed Gorffennaf, 2019 
am 11.00 am.(neu’n syth ar ôl yr Cabinet) i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. Mae 
croeso i chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os 
ydych yn dymuno gwneud hynny.  Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais. 
 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
   
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any items of business on this agenda in accordance 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers. 
 

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a 

gynhaliwyd ar 15 Mai 2019.  
1 - 2 

 
4  Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon - Adroddiad Diweddaru.  

3 - 10 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 

 

 

CABINET SITTING AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ 
INSTITUTE  

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN 

ON WEDNESDAY 15TH MAY 2019 AT 11.10 A.M. 
 

 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor D.V. Poole – Chair 
 
 

Councillors: 
 
 C. Cuss (Social Care and Wellbeing), N. George (Neighbourhood Services), C. Gordon 

(Corporate Services), B. A. Jones (Finance, Performance and Governance), P. Marsden 
(Education and Achievement), S. Morgan (Economy, Infrastructure and Sustainability), L. Phipps 
(Homes and Places) and E. Stenner (Environment and Public Protection).  

 
 

Together with: 
 

 C. Harrhy (Interim Chief Executive), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director - Education and Corporate 
Services), M. S. Williams (Interim Corporate Director - Communities), D. Street (Corporate 
Director – Social Services and Housing). 

 
 

Also in attendance: 
 
 P. Hudson (Marketing and Events Manager), R. Crane (Senior Solicitor) and C. Evans 

(Committee Services Officer).  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 There were no apologies for absence received.  
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of the 

meeting. 
 
 

3. CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE, THE NINE MILE 
 SCHOLARSHIP FUND AND THE JOHN EDWARDS FUND 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 16th January 2019 (minute nos. 1 - 
5) be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

 
  Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



4. BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE – MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
 

At the Cabinet as Trustees meeting of Blackwood Miners’ Institute held on the 16th January 2019 
it was resolved that Officers seek advice in respect of reviewing the membership of the Trustees 
to include arts and commercial sector expertise, to maximise opportunities within the Blackwood 
Miners’ Institute (BMI), and ensure that revenue remains sustainable and resilient and that a 
further report be brought in response. 

 
Currently the local authority acts as sole corporate trustee and has a legal duty to operate the 
charity in accordance with the governing document and has a legal obligation to account for the 
charity’s finances in accordance with the Charity Act 2011. All charities must produce annual 
statements of accounts under charity law. 

 
There are a number of ways that the Council can effect a change in the membership in order to 
progress towards delivering a sustainable and resilient service, as follows: 

 

 Incorporate the charity; 

 Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust; 

 Set up Holding Trust; 

 Set up an Advisory Group. 
 

Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute were asked to consider the options in 5.1.1 to 
5.1.4 of the report. 

 
Cabinet thanked the Officers for the report and discussion ensued. 

 
Cabinet considered each of the options within the report and sought further information on 5.1.2 
(Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust) and 5.1.3 (Holding Trust) and the benefits of 
these options.  Officers provided details on each of the options and explained that current 
circumstances would demonstrate that 5.1.2 would be the most suitable option as Trustees could 
be added or replaced under the powers contained in the Charity’s governing document.  As a 
result, job descriptions and person specifications could be developed and adverts could be 
posted for Trustees with relevant skills and knowledge as required.  

 
Following consideration and discussion it was moved and seconded that subject to the inclusion 
of an additional recommendation whereby a total of 9 new Trustees be appointed, 4 from 
members of the public and 5 Cabinet member representations, the recommendations in the 
report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 

 
   RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer's Report and subject to the  
  aforementioned additional recommendation: 

 
i)  option 5.1.2 outlined in section 5 of the Cabinet report to ‘Appoint new Trustees 

under the existing Trust’ be agreed as the favourable option; 
 
ii)  a total of 9 new Trustees be appointed, 4 from members of the public and 5 

Cabinet member representatives. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 11.20am. 

 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 2



 

 
 
 

 

 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS INSTITUTE - 
10TH JULY 2019 

 

SUBJECT: BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE – UPDATE REPORT 
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES  
 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 To update Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute on progress with the resolution 
to change the membership of the trustees, to update on ongoing operational activities and to 
advise of proposed budget savings to be implemented for 2020/21. 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 

2.1 At the Cabinet as Trustees meeting of Blackwood Miners’ Institute held on the 15th May 2019 
it was RESOLVED to ‘Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust’ with an additional 
recommendation that a total of 9 new Trustees, 4 from members of the public and 5 Cabinet 
member representatives be appointed. 

 

2.2 The Council’s Legal Services department are currently considering how best to bring about 
the required changes to the Charity’s existing governing document to bring into effect the 
recommendation, particularly with regard to decision making procedures following the 
appointment of new trustee.  Before the legal changes are brought into effect steps will need 
to be taken to identify potential external trustees to be appointed. 

 

2.3 The report provides an update on a number of areas of operation and programme activity 
including:  

 

 Trustee membership review 

 Box Office opening hours 

 Staffing requirements 

 Digital Marketing Signage 

 Arts & Education Network 

 Communities for Work Plus – Employment mentoring support 

 Programme 
 
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 Cabinet as Trustees endorse the steps outlined in 5.1.1 to establish the change of Trustees 
membership previously resolved and support the saving proposals identified in paragraphs 
5.1.2 and 5.1.3 of the report as part of the Council’s budget setting process for 2020/21.  

 
 

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.1 To respond to the previous resolution to review the membership of the Trustees. 
 

4.2 To contribute to the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan budget requirements. 
  

Page 3

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



5. THE REPORT 
 

5.1.1 The Trustee membership model resolved at the last meeting of the Cabinet sitting as Trustees 
will typically be brought into effect under the terms of the existing governing document by 
supplemental trust deed. Once the changes are brought into effect by resolution of the 
Trustee, the Charity Commission must be notified.  In some cases, the Charity Commission 
can also make the changes of its own accord by making a new charitable scheme.  Before the 
legal changes can be implemented a number of steps need to be taken as outlined below:  

 

 Identify potential new external trustees with following considerations in mind: 
o Organisational challenge 
o Experience / knowledge / skills requirement 
o Role description 
o Expectations / remuneration / length of tenure 
o Advert / application  / appointment process  
o Any other considerations as set out in the Charities Commissions Guidance on the 

appointment of new trustees (CC30) 

 Formulate new terms of reference and decision making procedures to be exercised by the 
Trustees when making decisions concerning the charity, and where necessary, inclusion 
of additional trustee powers 

 Instruct Legal Services to draft a Supplemental Trust Deed setting out variations to the 
Charity’s governing document and dealing with the appointment of new trustees 

 The making of a formal resolution by Cabinet as Trustees appointing new trustees and 
adopting variations to the governance of the Charity as set out in the Supplemental Trust 
Deed 

 Notification of changes sent to the Charity Commission 
 
5.1.2 A new box office system has now been implemented at Blackwood that allows customers to 

choose a seat of their choice and purchase their ticket online, supporting the Council’s 
emerging Digital Strategy by opening the Digital Front Door to transform our service delivery. 
The system will also allow customers to purchase add on services such as the pre-ordering 
and payment of drinks. https://bmi.ticketsolve.com/shows 

   
As sales of tickets are increasingly delivered through digital channels, a corresponding 
change to the box office opening hours will be required in order to translate the changes to a 
financial benefit and to bring the opening hours into line with similar venues operating across 
the region. A proposal to reduce the box office opening hours will potentially generate £15,000 
of savings for the 2020/21 budget. Complementary works to improve secure access to the 
building are scheduled for the summer to create a safer environment for staff. 

 
5.1.3 There is scope for a review of the staffing structure to generate further savings of up to 

£15,000 by looking at matching the role requirements to the future delivery of the desired 
programme activity. 

 
5.1.4 Caerphilly County Borough Council is the lead partner in hosting the Arts and Education 

Network: South East Wales, one strand of a major Welsh Government and Arts Council of 
Wales project, the all Wales Arts and Education Offer. The network is 100% funded by the 
Arts Council of Wales and generates an income of £15,000 from the provision of office space 
and administrative support to the Network. 

 
The Regional Arts & Education scheme is now in its fourth year of funding operating from 
Blackwood Miners Institute working across the South East Wales region to support the 
delivery of Creative Learning through the Arts (CTLA) programme, the five-year Arts and 
Education Action Plan. Working closely with schools, the Regional Education Consortia, local 
authorities and stakeholders in the education, arts, creative, cultural and heritage sectors, the 
network aims to deliver quality arts experiences and wider learning in schools in the 

Page 4

https://bmi.ticketsolve.com/shows


Expressive Arts. The Creative Industries are the fastest growing sector of the economy in the 
UK, growing at twice the rate of the economy as a whole1.   
 
The Network has engaged with 31 (36%) of schools across the county borough and their 
current work activity includes: 

   

 Offering Professional Development training sessions for teachers and educators 
 Support for Arts Champions offering mentoring and professional development support 
 Innovation Seed Fund grants for schools up to £1,000 for expressive arts projects 
 Developing Partnership courses with National Museum of Wales, CADW, Borough 

Theatre, Newport Riverfront, Blackwood Miners Institute, Llantarnam Grange and PYKA, 
with an objective of sharing and developing new audiences and income streams 

 
5.1.5 Officers are currently looking at the possibility of hosting the employment mentoring support 

that covers the East of the county borough through the Community Regeneration Service and 
the Communities for Work Plus programme at Blackwood Miners Institute. 

 
5.1.6 Upcoming shows include ‘Womans (Like Romans but with a ‘W’’), ‘the Noise Next Door’, 

‘Explosive Light Orchestra’, ‘Community Dance Showcase’, ‘Drama Showcase’, the ‘Pitmen 
Poets’ and the ‘India Electric Co’.  

 

     
 
5.1.7 Cabinet as Trustees have previously requested that the business case for installing fixed 

promotional digital signs in a number of our principal town centres is looked into. Provisional 
figures suggest that the supply & installation of a reasonably sized digital promotional / 
informational sign with an interactive capability would be circa £35,000 plus preparation and 
running costs. Subject to a planning application, the installation of such signs could be used to 
deliver campaign, promotional and information messages across a range of Council and 
private sector activity with the potential to generate a revenue stream for the Council. A 
funding application is currently with Welsh Government in respect of a proposal to install such 
signs in Caerphilly that could, if successful, act as pilot for potential further installations in 
Blackwood and other town centres.  

 
5.2 CONCLUSION 
 
5.2.1 Progress on the changes to charity’s governing document and appointment of trustee will be 

reported at future meetings. 
 
5.2.2 The ongoing reduction in Local Government funding is forecast to continue and will impact on 

funding for non-statutory areas of public sector spending and in order to enable Blackwood 
Miners Institute to thrive and build its resilience Officers will continue to review the future 
programme, develop our audience reach, make efficiencies to the operation of the building 
and service delivery and explore income generation opportunities.  

  

                                                
1 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/creative-industries-record-contribution-to-uk-economy 

Page 5



6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 It has been assumed that the financial pressures on local authority budgets will continue in the 

medium term as outlined in the Council’s Medium Term Financial plan combined with 
continuing inflationary pressure’s expected on wage and non-wage expenditure. 

 
6.2 Population growth by 2029 is expected to rise by 1% from 180,795 (2017 mid-year estimate) 

to 183,000, limiting the potential catchment area for venues like Blackwood Miners Institute 
that remain community focussed in their audiences. 

 
6.3 It is assumed changes in the age distribution of the population and changes to the 

composition of family structures will impact on entertainment and leisure choices and the need 
to adapt to future service provision accordingly.  

 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Effective financial planning, governance and the setting of balanced budgets and efficient 

delivery of services is at the heart of everything the Council does and is fundamental to the 
future of local service delivery. 

 
 The report links to the following Council policies:  

 

 The Value of Historic Places, Conservation Strategy for the Historic Environment 2014 – 
2019, CCBC. 

 A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’ - Regeneration Strategy for Caerphilly County 
Borough. 

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 
 
 Blackwood Miners Institute is a creative hub and houses the Council’ Arts Development 

Service and the South East Wales Arts & Education Service that along with the Institute 
support a number of policy areas and contributes to the following corporate objectives:  
 
Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

 
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

 
 The proposal will help to ensure the viability and vitality of Blackwood Miners Institute and its 

creative and cultural role in the community. 
 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Blackwood Miners Institute contributes to the Well-being goals through the generation of 

additional footfall, economic benefits and contributing to a vibrant educational, cultural and 
heritage offering. 

 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out seven Well-being Goals 
which aim to make a positive impact upon the social, economic, environmental and cultural 
well-being of the area or community concerned. The visitor attractions within the service 
through their programme of activities and focus align with the following Well-being Goals: 

 
  

Page 6



 A prosperous Wales 
Venues such as Blackwood Miners Institute play a key role in the community providing a 
focus and structure to entertainment, destination and consumer spending choices creating 
economic prosperity through direct employment in the creative and visitor economy 
generating valuable secondary spending to support local industry employment. 
  

 A healthier Wales 
Social prescribing has been highlighted by Public Health Wales as an opportune tool to 
support a healthier Wales through recognition of the impact of social determinants on 
health and well-being. Blackwood Miners Institute is a community asset that offer 
opportunities to support volunteering and through the enjoyment of cultural and art 
performance and participatory activity that can help improve self-esteem, mood, social 
contact and the development of transferable skills nurturing creativity. 
    

 A more equal Wales 
The provision of a range of opportunities to participate in art and creative activity across 
the county borough can help remove cultural, geographic, economic and social barriers to 
life enhancing participation and engagement benefits contributing to a more equal Wales. 
 

 A more resilient Wales 
Arts and cultural provision can help nurture innovation and creativity reaching beyond their 
realm, though they are its natural nurturing ground. Creativity is a skill that can be used to 
bring innovative solutions to familiar problems, and encourage new ways of thinking and 

living.   
 

 A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
The provision of venues such as Blackwood Miners Institute that are engineered to deliver 
educational, creative and cultural activities in a safe environment can increase individual 
and community confidence and sense of self-worth, building social cohesion by creating 
friendship and a sense of 'belonging'. It can make people feel safer and more positive 
about where they live, taking a pride in their own culture, heritage and background. 

 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language. 
The service provides a range of activities across the entertainment and art areas 
contributing significantly to the cultural vibrancy of the area. Over 35,000 participate or 
engage with a programme of cultural activities at Blackwood Miners’ Institute over a diary 
of 200 performances / shows per year. 

  

 A Globally Responsible Wales 
Arts, heritage and culture help us to appreciate and understand the world we live in, 
inspiring and exciting us to question, explore and bring new insights to familiar challenges 
and can unlock our creativity and imagination, helping us to become more engaged, active 
and fulfilled citizens. 
 
The report is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle in the Act:  
 
Long term 
The report provides options to ensure the long term sustainability, viability and role of 
Blackwood Miners Institute in contributing to the economic prosperity of the region by 
providing a range of options to meet the financial challenges ahead without submitting to 
short term objectives that could be detrimental to the long term needs of future 
generations. 
 
Prevention 
Having identified the financial challenges that lie ahead, the report aims to provide a range 
of options that can be considered that address the issue of sustainability and prevent 
problems arising in the longer term whilst still allowing the local authority to support the 
creative industry through the provision of art and cultural provision.   

Page 7



  
Integration 
The Council’s well-being objectives for the period 2018-2023 support a number of national 
objectives and the hosting of the South East Wales Arts & Education Service is an 
example of how Blackwood Miners Institute is integrating to the work of the Arts & 
Education Service in supporting wider learning in schools in the Expressive Arts and the 
delivery of the new Welsh Curriculum. 
 
Collaboration 
There are a number of options identified in the report that provide an opportunity to 
engage and collaborative with external stakeholders.   
 
Involvement 
The Council provides opportunities for our residents to participate and represent their and 
their community’s interest in achieving their well-being goals through participation in the 
‘Nights out’ scheme and ‘Get Creative’ festival and in relation to Blackwood the 
bicentennial celebrations planned for 2020.  

 
8.2 There are a number of ‘national indicators’ that are used to measure progress against the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act that relate to Blackwood Miners Institute 
including: 

 

 No 28: Percentage of people who volunteer. 
  

 No 35: Percentage of people attending or participating in arts, culture or heritage 
activities at least three times a year. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1       An EqIA screening will be completed as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan process for 

the savings proposals under consideration identified in the report.  
 
9.2 Maintaining control over the content of digital signs will ensure Council information and 

campaign content are presented bilingually.  
 
9.3 The new Box Office system provides for greater inclusivity and accessibility.  
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Set up, administration and remuneration expenses will be clarified as the changing Trustee 

membership model evolves.  
 
10.2 There are potential savings of circa £30,000 identified through 5.1.2 and 5.1.3.  
 
10.3 The Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for 2018/2019 will be reported to the Trustees 

later in the year before submission to the Charity Commission. 
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are potential staffing implications that are being explored through the process of 

consultation with the Charities Commission with regard to the changing Trustee membership 
model. 

 
11.2 There are potential staff implications for the proposed restructure saving.    
 
 

Page 8



12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The comments from consultees have been included in this report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
 
13.1 Charities Act 2011, Local Government Act 1972 and the Trustees Act 1925. 
 
 
Author: Paul Hudson, Destination & Events Manager  
Consultees:  Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability and Well Being and Future Generations  
Mark S Williams Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement & Section 151 Officer 

                       Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services 
Richard Crane, Senior Solicitor 
Lisa Lane, Corporate Solicitor  
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities 
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning  
Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Manager  
Mike Eedy, Finance Manager 
Daryl Whitehead, Theatre and Arts Service Manager 

 Ruth Lloyd, Arts and Education Network Co-ordinator 
 

Page 9



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a gynhaliwyd ar 15 Mai 2019.
	4 Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon - Adroddiad Diweddaru.

